
City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 3/26/2020 3:57 PM  

 

AGENDA 

CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 
Thursday, April 2, 2020 – 7:00 PM 

 Chairperson Ed Newman 

 Commissioners Courtney Christiansen 

  Mick Routh 

  

 

TJ Welch 

Peter Wilk 

   

 

NOTICE OF REMOTE ACCESS ONLY: 
 
In accordance with the current Shelter in Place Order from Santa Cruz County Health Services 
and Executive Order N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of California, the 
Planning Commission meeting will not be physically open to the public and in person 
attendance cannot be accommodated.  
 
To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of 
the public can observe the meeting online at http://capitolaca.iqm2.com/Citizens/Default.aspx or 
live on Spectrum Cable Television channel 8.  
 
Remote participation is possible in the form of emailed public comment. 
 
How to comment via email: 
 

1. As always, send additional materials to the Planning Commission via 
planningcommission@ci.capitola.ca.us by 5 p.m. the Wednesday before the meeting 
and they will be distributed to agenda recipients.  

2. During the meeting, send comments via email to publiccomment@ci.capitola.ca.us   
 

 Identify the item you wish to comment on in your email’s subject line.  

 Emailed comments will be accepted from the start of the meeting until the Chair 
announces that public comment for that Consent Agenda/Public Hearing item is 
closed. 

 Emailed comments should be a maximum of 450 words, which corresponds to 
approximately 3 minutes of speaking time. 

 Each emailed comment will be read aloud for up to three minutes and/or displayed 
on a screen. 

 Emails received by publiccomment@ci.capitola.ca.us outside of the comment period 
outlined above will not be included in the record. 

http://capitolaca.iqm2.com/Citizens/Default.aspx
mailto:planningcommission@ci.capitola.ca.us
mailto:publiccomment@ci.capitola.ca.us
mailto:publiccomment@ci.capitola.ca.us


CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – April 2, 2020 2 
 
 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 

B. Public Comments 

Short communications from the public concerning matters not on the Agenda.  
All speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their 
name may be accurately recorded in the Minutes. 

C. Commission Comments 

D. Staff Comments 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under “Consent Calendar” are considered by the Planning Commission to be routine 
and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate discussion on these 
items prior to the time the Planning Commission votes on the action unless members of the public or the 
Planning Commission request specific items to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for 
separate discussion will be considered in the order listed on the Agenda. 

 
A. 115 San Jose Avenue   #19-0186   APN: 035-221-17&18 

REQUEST TO CONTINUE Master Use Permit including designated shared 
seating areas with onsite consumption of beer and wine for the Capitola 
Mercantile located within the C-V (Central Village) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Capitola Associates, LLC 
Representative: Dennis Norton, Filed: 04.19.2019 

 

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Public Hearings are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each item listed as a 
Public Hearing.  The following procedure is as follows:  1) Staff Presentation; 2) Public Discussion; 3) 
Planning Commission Comments; 4) Close public portion of the Hearing; 5) Planning Commission 
Discussion; and 6) Decision. 

 
A. 1515 Prospect Avenue   #19-0267   APN: 034-045-12 

Design Permit for first- and second-story additions to a nonconforming single-
family residence located within the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Peter Shamshoian 
Representative: Richard L. Emigh, Filed: 06.03.2019 

 
 
 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – April 2, 2020 3 
 
B. 1601 41st Avenue   #20-0105   APN: 034-151-20 

Sign Permit for new wall signs for Outdoor Supply Hardware located within the C-
C (Community Commercial) zoning district.  
This project is not in the Coastal Zone. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Ow Family Trust DBA King’s Plaza SC 
Representative: Nathan Moreno – Ad Art Inc., Filed: 03.10.20 

 
C. 1850 41st Avenue   #20-0114   APN: 034-201-44 

Conditional Use Permit Amendment for a retail cannabis business located within 
the C-C (Community Commercial) zoning district.  
This project is not in the Coastal Zone. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: C. Richard Deane and Marilyn Ardis Deane Revocable Family 
Trust 
Representative: Lara DeCaro, Filed: 03.13.2020 

 

5. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

 
A.    Update on Community Development Department remote submittal of Planning and Building 

permits. 

6. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

7. ADJOURNMENT 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – April 2, 2020 4 
 

 

APPEALS:  The following decisions of the Planning Commission can be appealed to the City Council 

within the (10) calendar days following the date of the Commission action:  Conditional Use Permit, 

Variance, and Coastal Permit.  The decision of the Planning Commission pertaining to an Architectural 

and Site Review Design Permit can be appealed to the City Council within the (10) working days following 

the date of the Commission action.  If the tenth day falls on a weekend or holiday, the appeal period is 

extended to the next business day. 
 

All appeals must be in writing, setting forth the nature of the action and the basis upon which the action is 

considered to be in error, and addressed to the City Council in care of the City Clerk.  An appeal must be 

accompanied by a five hundred dollar ($500) filing fee, unless the item involves a Coastal Permit that is 

appealable to the Coastal Commission, in which case there is no fee.  If you challenge a decision of the 

Planning Commission in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else 

raised at the public hearing described in this agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City 

at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 

Notice regarding Planning Commission meetings:  The Planning Commission meets regularly on the 

1
st
 Thursday of each month at 7 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, 

Capitola. 
 

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The Planning Commission Agenda and complete Agenda 

Packet are available on the Internet at the City's website:  www.cityofcapitola.org.  Need more 

information?  Contact the Community Development Department at (831) 475-7300. 
 

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Materials that are a public 

record under Government Code § 54957.5(A) and that relate to an agenda item of a regular meeting of 

the Planning Commission that are distributed to a majority of all the members of the Planning 

Commission more than 72 hours prior to that meeting shall be available for public inspection at City Hall 

located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, during normal business hours. 
 

Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with 

a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 

1990.  Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in 

the City Council Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 

due to a disability, please contact the Community Development Department at least 24 hours in advance 

of the meeting at (831) 475-7300.  In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental 

sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 

Televised Meetings:  Planning Commission meetings are cablecast "Live" on Charter Communications 

Cable TV Channel 8 and are recorded to be replayed on the following Monday and Friday at 1:00 p.m. on 

Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25.  Meetings can also be viewed from the City's website:  

www.cityofcapitola.org. 

 
 

http://www.cityofcapitola.org/
http://www.cityofcapitola.org/


 

 

 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T  

 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
DATE: APRIL 2, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: 115 San Jose Avenue  #19-0186  APN: 035-221-17&18 
 

REQUEST TO CONTINUE Master Use Permit including designated 
shared seating areas with onsite consumption of beer and wine for the 
Capitola Mercantile located within the C-V (Central Village) zoning 
district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal 
Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Capitola Associates, LLC 
Representative: Dennis Norton, Filed: 04.19.2019 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission continue application #19-0186 to the May 7, 2020, 
Planning Commission meeting. 
 
 
 
Prepared By: Sean Sesanto 

3.A

Packet Pg. 5



 

 

 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T  

 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
DATE: APRIL 2, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: 1515 Prospect Avenue  #19-0267  APN: 034-045-12 
 

Design Permit for first- and second-story additions to a nonconforming 
single-family residence located within the R-1 (Single-Family 
Residential) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal 
Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Peter Shamshoian 
Representative: Richard L. Emigh, Filed: 06.03.2019 

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing 367-square-feet of first- and second-story additions to an existing 
1,457-square-foot, two-story, nonconforming, single-family residence located at 1515 Prospect 
Avenue within the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.  The project requires approval 
of a design permit and minor encroachment permit.  The application complies with all 
development standards of the R-1 zone.   
 
BACKGROUND 
On March 11, 2020, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application and 
provided the applicant with the following direction:  
 
Public Works Representative, Kailash Mozumder: requested the designer direct additional 
drainage to the front of the property. Current design shows swales to the backyard. Mr. 
Mozumder requested the designer show the current drainage flow and how the proposed 
improvements will change/modify flow. He also informed the designer to verify the stormwater 
application calculations reflect the latest design. Mr. Mozumder clarified that a minor 
encroachment permit would be required as long at the proposed wall is not on public property. 
 
Building Official, Robin Woodman: stated that the northern wall of the structure was within five 
feet of the property line and would is required to have a 1-hour fire resistant construction.  She 
also explained that the openings on the northern wall could not exceed 25 percent of total wall 
area. 
 
Local Architect, Frank Phanton: Appreciated the proposal in general and noted that the remodel 
gives consideration in respect to neighbor privacy to the sides.  Mr. Phanton noted that the flat 

4.A

Packet Pg. 6



 
 

 

roof and door-sized window on the rear of the structure appears designed for conversion into a 
future deck. 
 
Assistant Planner, Sean Sesanto: informed the applicant that windows adjacent to the flat roof 
should be at least four feet from the finished floor to prevent use of the flat roof as a deck. 
 
Following the Architectural and Site review meeting, the applicant submitted revised plans that 
raised the window adjacent to the flat roof four feet from finished floor. 
 

R-1 (Single Family Residential) Zoning District 

Development Standards 

Building Height 

R-1 Regulation Existing Proposed 

25 ft. 21 ft. 10 in. 24 ft. 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

 Existing Proposed 

Lot Size 3,200 sq. ft. 3,200 sq. ft. 

Maximum Floor Area 
Ratio 

57% (Max 1,824 sq. ft.) 57% (Max 1,824 sq. 
ft.) 

First Story Floor Area 720 sq. ft. 1,110 sq. ft. 

Second Story Floor Area 887 sq. ft. 864 sq. ft. 

Deck Exception -150 sq. ft. -150 sq. ft. 

   TOTAL FAR 45.6% (1,457 sq. ft.) 57% (1,824 sq. ft.) 

Yards (setbacks are measured from the edge of the public right-of-way) 

 R-1 Regulation Existing Proposed 

Front Yard 1st Story 15 ft. 15 ft.  15 ft.  

Front Yard 2nd Story  
& Garage 

20 ft. 15 ft. (2nd Story) 
15 ft. (Garage) 

15 ft. (2nd Story) 
18 ft. (Garage) 
Existing 
Nonconforming 

Side Yard 1st Story 10% 
lot 

width 

Lot width: 40 
ft. 
 
4 ft. min. 

4 ft. (north side) 
8 ft. (south side) 

4 ft. (north side) 
6 ft. 4 in. (south 
side) 

Side Yard 2nd Story 15% 
of 

width 

Lot width: 40 
ft. 
 
6 ft. min 

4 ft. (north side) 
8 ft. (south side) 

4 ft. (north side) 
7 ft. 10 in. (south 
side) 
Existing 
Nonconforming 

Rear Yard 1st Story 20% 
of lot 
depth 

Lot depth: 80 
ft. 
 
16 ft. min. 

35 ft. 21 ft. 4 in. 

Rear Yard 2nd Story 20% 
of lot 
depth 

Lot depth: 80 
ft. 
 
16 ft. min. 

35 ft. 35 ft. 

Encroachments (list all) 2nd story and garage in front setback area, 2nd story in north side 
setback area 

Parking 

4.A

Packet Pg. 7



 
 

 

 Required Existing Proposed 

Residential (from 1,501 
up to 2,000 sq. ft.) 

2 spaces total 
1 covered 
1 uncovered 

2 spaces total 
2 covered 
0 uncovered 

2 spaces total 
1 covered 
1 uncovered 

Garage & Access. Bldg. Complies with Standards? List non-compliance 

Garage Yes  

Underground Utilities: required with 25% increase in area Required 

 
DISCUSSION 
The existing residence at 1515 Prospect Avenue is a nonconforming, two-story, single-family 
residence.  The lot is in the Jewel Box neighborhood and is surrounded by one- and two-story 
single-family homes. 
 
The applicant is proposing 367-square-feet of first- and second-story additions that include a 
master bedroom and an extensive remodel.  The proposed remodel will utilize stucco siding on 
the first and second story with a Spanish tile roof.  The parking onsite is being modified from two 
covered spaces within the garage, to one space in the garage and one space on the driveway.  
The project includes a third off-site parking space in the public right-of-way along Prospect 
Avenue and new curb and gutter and driveway approach.    
 
Nonconforming Structures 
The existing structure is nonconforming.  Second stories are required to have increased front 
yard and side yard setbacks. The second story of the existing structure encroaches into the 
required second-story setbacks in the front and side yards.  Also, the garage encroaches into 
the front setback.  Pursuant to §17.72.070, the applicant submitted the required nonconforming 
calculation, which demonstrates that the proposed alterations do not exceed 80 percent of the 
present fair market value of the structure, so the alterations are permissible. 
 
Minor Encroachment Permit 
Along this section of Prospect Avenue, there is an 11-foot-wide strip of unimproved right-of-way 
which residents are allowed to landscape and maintain.  The application is proposing several 
improvements within the public right-of-way, including new curb and gutter, depressed driveway 
approach, landscaping, and two permeable paver strips for one new parking space.  The Public 
Works Department has reviewed the plans and supports the proposed improvements with the 
issuance of a minor encroachment permit.  
 
CEQA 
Section 15301(e) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts the additions to existing structures provided 
that the addition will not result in an increase of more than 50 percent of the floor area of the 
structures before the addition, or 2,500 square feet, whichever is less.  This project involves 
367-square-feet of additions to an existing 1,457-square-foot single-family residence within the 
R-1 (Single-Family Residence) zoning district that will increase the floor area by 25%.  No 
adverse environmental impacts were discovered during review of the proposed project.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve project application #19-0267 based on the 
following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1. The project approval consists of the construction of a 367-square-foot addition to an 

existing 1,457-square-foot single-family residence. The maximum Floor Area Ratio for 

4.A

Packet Pg. 8



 
 

 

the 3,200 square-foot property is 57% (1,824 square feet).  The total FAR of the project 
is 57% with a total of 1,824 square feet, complaint with the maximum FAR within the 
zone. The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and 
approved by the Planning Commission on April 2, 2020, except as modified through 
conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing. 
 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission. All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans 
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM 
shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans. All 
construction shall be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP 
STRM.  

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 

requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department. Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.  
 

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a landscape plan shall be submitted and approved 
by the Community Development Department. The landscape plan can be produced by 
the property owner, landscape professional, or landscape architect.  Landscape plans 
shall reflect the Planning Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location 
of species and details of any proposed (but not required) irrigation systems.  

 
7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #19-0267 

shall be paid in full. 
 

8. Prior to issuance of building permit, the developer shall pay Affordable housing in-lieu 
fees as required to assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) 
Housing Ordinance.  
 

9. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Creek Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.  
 

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works. The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

11. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

4.A

Packet Pg. 9



 
 

 

12. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 
official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

13. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work. No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way. 
 

14. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City. 
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 
 

15. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department. All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards. 

 
16. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 

approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director. Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation. 
 

17. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance. The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 
permit expiration. Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

18. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted. 
 

19. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days.  

 
FINDINGS 

A. The project, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purposes of the 
Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project. The proposed remodel of an 
existing single-family residence complies with the development standards of the Single-
Family Residential District. 
 

B. The project will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the application for a remodel of an existing 

4.A

Packet Pg. 10



 
 

 

single-family residence.  The design of the remodel with stucco siding and new Spanish 
tile roof will fit in nicely with the existing neighborhood. The project will maintain the 
character and integrity of the neighborhood.   

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301(e) of the California    

Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
Section 15301(e) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing structures 
provided that the addition will not result in an increase of more than 50 percent of the 
floor area of the structure before the addition, or 2,500 square feet, whichever is less. 
This project involves a 367-square-foot addition within the R-1 (Single-Family 
Residence) zoning district. No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during 
review of the proposed project.  

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 1515 Prospect Avenue - Full Plan Set 
2. 1515 Prospect Avenue - Construction Cost Breakdown 

 
Prepared By: Matt Orbach 
  Associate Planner 

4.A

Packet Pg. 11



SHEET:

SHEETS

41
3 

C
ap

ito
la

 A
ve

nu
e 

   
   

 C
ap

ito
la

, C
A

 9
50

10
Ph

on
e:

 8
31

-4
79

-1
45

2 
   

   
Fa

x:
 8

31
-4

79
-1

47
6

   
R

IC
H

A
R

D
 L

. E
M

IG
H

   
  

   
  A

.I.
B

.D
.

D
R

A
FT

IN
G

, D
ES

IG
N

IN
G

 &
 L

A
N

D
 U

SE
 A

N
A

LY
SI

S 
P

et
er

 S
ha

m
sh

oi
an

15
15

 P
ro

sp
ec

t, 
C

ap
ito

la
C

A 
95

01
0

by
 R

LE
 

2-
28

-2
02

0 
+ 

10
 s

f
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

18
22

 s
f

A
P

N
 0

03
-2

02
-0

8 

PHONE
408-914-0404
209 Loma Alta Ave.
Los Gatos, CA 95030

433 sf added

A-1

SITE PLAN
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"1

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T 

A
V

E

80'

80

50

15'-0"

FA
C

E
 O

F 
C

U
R

B

9'-11 1/2"

4'
-0

"
12

'-0
"

deck

deck

16'-0"

REMOVE ONE COVERED SPACE

CAR1CAR 2
GAR
10 X 20 MIN

18'-0"20'-0"

OPEN 
9' X 18'

30'-0"

24
'-0

"

40
'-0

"

3'-0"

30'-0" 30'-0"

24
'-0

"

24
'-0

"

5'-0"

28
'-0

"

EXISTING LOWER FLOOR
1/8" = 1' 0"

EXISTING UPPER FLOOR
1.8" = 1' 0"

6'
-0

"
6'

-0
"

10'-0"

6'
-0

"

3'-0"

HEATED
BATHROOM
113 SF

WATER HEATER

GARAGE

POST

D
E

C
K

 A
B

O
V

E

DOWN
UP

BR

BR

CLO

KIT DR

LR

NEW FOOTPRINT SHADED

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

11'-5"

5'-0"

LEGEND

A-1 SITE AND EXISTING BLDG
A-2 POROSED FLOOR PLAN
A-3 ROOF PLAN
A-4 EXISTING ELEVATIONS
A-5 NEW ELEVATIONS
S-1 SURVEY 8/16/19
L-1   PRELIMINARY GRADING 

AND LANDSCAPE PLAN

40'

NOTE:
BUILDING IS NON CONFLRMING ON  FRONT
LESS THATN 20 FEET BASED ON 8-16-19 SURVEY
BY ALPHA LAND SURVEYS, INC

6'-0"

existing concrete

existing concrete

existing concrete as
ph

al
t

existing fence not on property line

ex
is

tin
g 

fe
nc

e 
no

t o
n 

pr
op

er
ty

 li
ne

existing fence not on property line

pr
op

os
ed

 s
eb

ac
k

re
qu

ire
d 

se
tb

ac
k

additional
first floor 
area

7'
-1

0"

remove 5" dia plumb tree

6" dia lemon tree
to stay

dbl 4" dia flowering 
camellias tree
to stay

VICINITY MAP
\NTS

SITE P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T 

A
V

E

GARNET ST

LI
N

C
O

LN
 A

V

EMERALD ST

WHARF ROAD

PROSPECT AVE

ELEV
84

ELEV 83

ELEV 83

FIRST FLOOR LINE
SECOND FLOOR LINE

CP
HOUSE
LINE

H
O

U
S

E
TW

O
 S

TO
R

Y

CP
FIRST FLOOR LINE
SECOND FLOOR LINE

HOUSE FOOTPRINT

21'-5 3/8"

TWO STORY
HOUSE

SEE SHEET L-1 FOR THE PRELIMINARY
GRADING AND LANDSCAPE PLAN

THE STORM WATER BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (STRM-BMP)
SHALL BE PRINTED IN FULL AND INCORPORATED INTO THE 
CONSTRUCTION PLANS.

NOTE THIS INCLUDES DOWNSPOUTS TO SPLASH GUARDS,
MOST DOWNSPOUTS TO LANDSCAPING AREAS. AND USE OF
PERVIOUS PAVERS REPLACING SOME OF THE IMPERVIOUS 
AREAS IN THE FRONT YARD AND BACK YARD AREAS.

THE LOT SLOPES TO THE BACK BROM THE EXISTING GARAGE 
DOOR AREAS AND THE GRAVEL UNDER THE
BACK PATIO PAVER AREA WILL ALLOW FOR RAIN WATER PERCULATON

AS PROPOSED THERE IS A RECUCTION IN THE PERVIOUS SURFACE
ON THE LOT.

BUILDING FAR
FIRST FLOOR                  =1003 sf   
SECOND FLOOR           =  636 sf
(stair area on first floor only)
DECK AREA OVER 150 SF= 85 sf

LOT AREA 3200 SF
FAR ALLOWED  .57 =1824 sf
FAR PROPOSED  = 1724 sf = .54
IF COVERED PORCH OF 36 sf
ON FIRST FLOOR IS 
ADDED PROPOSED = 1760 sf = .55

4.A.1

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

51
5 

P
ro

sp
ec

t 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

15
15

 P
ro

sp
ec

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



SHEET:

SHEETS

41
3 

C
ap

ito
la

 A
ve

nu
e 

   
   

 C
ap

ito
la

, C
A

 9
50

10
Ph

on
e:

 8
31

-4
79

-1
45

2 
   

   
Fa

x:
 8

31
-4

79
-1

47
6

   
R

IC
H

A
R

D
 L

. E
M

IG
H

   
  

   
  A

.I.
B

.D
.

D
R

A
FT

IN
G

, D
ES

IG
N

IN
G

 &
 L

A
N

D
 U

SE
 A

N
A

LY
SI

S 
P

et
er

 S
ha

m
sh

oi
an

15
15

 P
ro

sp
ec

t, 
C

ap
ito

la
C

A 
95

01
0

by
 R

LE
 

2-
28

-2
02

0 
+ 

10
 s

f
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

18
22

 s
f

A
P

N
 0

03
-2

02
-0

8 

PHONE
408-914-0404
209 Loma Alta Ave.
Los Gatos, CA 95030

stair up

MASTER BR

CLO

MASTER BATH

CAR 1
10' X 20' 

BIKE
GARAGE

GUEST

BATH

CAR 2
9' X 18'

CLO

3'
-3

 3
/4

"

UP

1' 0H

8'
-0

"

6'-0"

w d

4'
-0

"

POST

WALKWAY

3'-0"27'-0"

POU WATER HEATER
FAU OVER UPPER BATHROOM
(MAY BE HYDRONIC HEAT UNIT)

10 FOOT
OH DOOR

1

4

2

3

5
6
7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

FUTURE 
ELEV

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
LO

O
R

 P
LA

N

8'-0"

1'-0"

28
'-6

"

A-2FIRST FLOOR PLAN
1/4" = 1' 0"

SECOND FLOOR PLAN
1/4" = 1' 0"

PROPERTY LINE

4'
-0

"

PROPERTY LINE

4'
-0

"

entry

4' x 1' high window

10'-1 1/4"

3'-0"27'-0"

removed area 92 sf from E second floor

5'
-0

"

16'-0"

16
' R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 R
E

A
R

 S
E

TB
A

D
K

40'-3"

20'-3 3/4"

L
E
D
G
E

2'-0"

1'
-0

"

BAY WINOW SEAT

4'
-0

"

FIRST FLOOR SETBACK LINE

6'
-0

"

e) 6' fence see survey

courtyard

gate

conc

pavers

PROPOSED REAR YARD SETBACK

EXIST CONCRETE

EXIST CONCRETE

42
 " 

H
IG

H
 B

LO
C

K
 F

E
N

C
E

 / 
W

A
LL

PLANTING AREA

10'-0"

C
U

R
B

 L
IN

E

CONC

2'
 W

ID
E

 P
LA

N
TI

N
G

 A
R

E
A

pavers

FR
O

N
T 

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

conc
radius 12'

conc

6'
 h

ig
h 

fe
nc

e

area removed

ar
ea

 re
m

ov
ed

table and chairs

4'
-0

"

88 -8 ---0-8'-88 -00"8'8'88 0"00"

future 
elevator

BATH

DOWN

DECK

ISLAND
4' x 6'

DOWN DECK

SKYLIGHT

10
'-1

0"
5'

-0
"

28
'-6

"

28
'-6

"

fireplace
3 sides
glass

PANTRY

4' x 2' high 4' x 2' high

9' clg

10' clg

s

s

ref

oven

cook top

1.5' OH

1.5' OH

1.5' OH

FLAT ROOF AREA
2% SLOPE

12
'-8

"

24
'-0

"

4'-6"

10
'-8

"

REMOVED 2' OF DECK

bu
ild

in
g 

ar
ea

 re
m

ov
ed

deck area removed

building area removed

building area removed

7'
-5

 7
/8

"

11'-0"

6"

7'
-6

"

2'
-0

"
7'

-3
"

13
'-9

"
5'

-6
"

6'-6" 2'-3" 11'-6" 17'-9" 5'-3"

7'
-9

"

30'-0"

15
'-9

"

or
ig

in
al

 w
id

th

5'
-3

"

30'-0"

5'-3"13'-4"6'-11"

rail

ra
il

rail

1'
-6

"
1'

-6
"

FLOOR AREA RATIO
MAIN FLOOR 1035 SQUARE FEET
SECOND FLOOR 705 SQUARE FEET
DECK 190 SQUARE FEET
WITH 150 SF CREDIT
TOTAL FLOOR AREA 1782 SF / 3200 LOT = .56%

EXISTING IMPERVIOUS LOT AREA (SEE SURVEY)
BUILDING FOOTPRINT AREA 720 SF
CONCREDTE DRIVEWAY, WALKS
AND PATIO AREA 1267 SF
TOTAL  1987 SQUARE FEET / 3200 LOT = 62%

PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS LOT AREA
BUILDING FOOTPRINT  720 + 423 = 1,143 SF
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY AND WALK 380 SF
TOTAL 1523 A REDUCTION OF 464 SF 
NO INCREASE INDOWNSTREAM WATER IMPACTS 

EXISTING CONCRETE REMOVED
AND PERVIOUS PAVERS INSTALLED
920 SF

DRAINAGE PATTERN AND TOPO SHOWN
ON L-1 PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN

40'

80'

80'

40'

40'

40'

80'

80'

bench

4'-6"

dr
iv

ew
ay

 w
id

th
 4

0%
 o

f l
ot

 w
id

th

1'5% slope

5/
8"

 h
ig

h 
cu

rb

7.
5%

 s
lo

pe
7.

5%
 s

lo
pe

6"
 h

ig
h 

cu
rb

5/8 " curb at driveway 6" high curb3'-4 1/4"

7.5% slope

drivewaway profile at front

3'
-4

 1
/4

"
3'

-4
 1

/4
"

FOR REVIEW BY OWNER
____________________________
APPROVED        DATE

CONC

CONC

CONC

CONC

PAVERS

LANDSCAPE

16
'-0

"

CONC

3'-4 1/4"

7.5% slope

16'-0"

5'
-4

"

existig edge
of driveway

10
'-0

"

7'-6"

pavers

PAVERS

PAVERS

10'-0"

IC
E

 P
LA

N
T 

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

TU
R

F 
B

LO
C

K

TU
R

F 
B

LO
C

K

9'
-3

"

FLU

6'
-0

"

11'-8 1/8"

1'-1 5/8"

1'
-6

"

4.A.1

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

51
5 

P
ro

sp
ec

t 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

15
15

 P
ro

sp
ec

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



SHEET:

SHEETS

41
3 

C
ap

ito
la

 A
ve

nu
e 

   
   

 C
ap

ito
la

, C
A

 9
50

10
Ph

on
e:

 8
31

-4
79

-1
45

2 
   

   
Fa

x:
 8

31
-4

79
-1

47
6

   
R

IC
H

A
R

D
 L

. E
M

IG
H

   
   

   
  A

.I.
B

.D
.

D
R

A
FT

IN
G

, D
ES

IG
N

IN
G

 &
 L

A
N

D
 U

SE
 A

N
A

LY
SI

S 
P

et
er

 S
ha

m
sh

oi
an

15
15

 P
ro

sp
ec

t, 
C

ap
ito

la
C

A 
95

01
0

by
 R

LE
 

2-
28

-2
02

0 
+ 

10
 s

f
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

18
22

 s
f

A
P

N
 0

03
-2

02
-0

8 

PHONE
408-914-0404
209 Loma Alta Ave.
Los Gatos, CA 95030

de
ck

 a
re

a

A-3

PROPERTY LINE

R
O

O
F 

P
LA

N

ONE STORY AREA
DOTTED LINE

TWO STORY AREA

2%

2%

flat roof
foam over

2%

2%

ROOF  PLAN
1/4" = 1' 0"

DS

D
S D
S

DS

DS

D
S

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
EP
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE

FIREPLACE
FLUE CURB

SKYLIGHT
ALL ROOF SLOPES
6:12 UNLESS NOTED
OTHERWISE

10'-0"

9'
-3

"

FLU

4.A.1

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

51
5 

P
ro

sp
ec

t 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

15
15

 P
ro

sp
ec

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



SHEET:

SHEETS

41
3 

C
ap

ito
la

 A
ve

nu
e 

   
   

 C
ap

ito
la

, C
A

 9
50

10
Ph

on
e:

 8
31

-4
79

-1
45

2 
   

   
Fa

x:
 8

31
-4

79
-1

47
6

   
R

IC
H

A
R

D
 L

. E
M

IG
H

   
   

   
  A

.I.
B

.D
.

D
R

A
FT

IN
G

, D
ES

IG
N

IN
G

 &
 L

A
N

D
 U

SE
 A

N
A

LY
SI

S 
P

et
er

 S
ha

m
sh

oi
an

15
15

 P
ro

sp
ec

t, 
C

ap
ito

la
C

A 
95

01
0

by
 R

LE
 

2-
28

-2
02

0 
+ 

10
 s

f
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

18
22

 s
f

A
P

N
 0

03
-2

02
-0

8 

PHONE
408-914-0404
209 Loma Alta Ave.
Los Gatos, CA 95030

LEFT SIDE ELEVATION
1/4" = 1' 0"

FRONT ELEVATION
1'4" = 1' 0"

verify e ht

RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION
1/4" = 1' 0"

BACK ELEVATION
1/4" = 1' 0"

E METER

G METER

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
S

A-4

21
'-1

0 
1/

4"

21
'-1

0 
1/

4"

21
'-1

0 
1/

4"

21
'-1

0 
1/

4"

4.A.1

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

51
5 

P
ro

sp
ec

t 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

15
15

 P
ro

sp
ec

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



SHEET:

SHEETS

41
3 

C
ap

ito
la

 A
ve

nu
e 

   
   

 C
ap

ito
la

, C
A

 9
50

10
Ph

on
e:

 8
31

-4
79

-1
45

2 
   

   
Fa

x:
 8

31
-4

79
-1

47
6

   
R

IC
H

A
R

D
 L

. E
M

IG
H

   
   

   
  A

.I.
B

.D
.

D
R

A
FT

IN
G

, D
ES

IG
N

IN
G

 &
 L

A
N

D
 U

SE
 A

N
A

LY
SI

S 
P

et
er

 S
ha

m
sh

oi
an

15
15

 P
ro

sp
ec

t, 
C

ap
ito

la
C

A 
95

01
0

by
 R

LE
 

2-
28

-2
02

0 
+ 

10
 s

f
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

18
22

 s
f

A
P

N
 0

03
-2

02
-0

8 

PHONE
408-914-0404
209 Loma Alta Ave.
Los Gatos, CA 95030

4'-0"

LEFT SIDE ELEVATION
1/4" = 1' 0"

FRONT ELEVATION
1/4" = 1' 0"

RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION

BACK ELEVATION
1/4" = 1' 0"

E METER

G METER

at back

le
ft 

si
de

 p
ro

pe
rty

 li
ne

1'-6"

8'-0"

TILE SAMPLE
FOR ENTIRE ROOF

8'
-0

"
1'

-0
"

flat roof slight sope
to north and south
foam at 2%

all windows and doors
with plant on trim

A-5

WROGHT IRON  RAIL
W 3.5" MAX OPENING

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
S

1'-6"

6'-0"

3'-0" 27'-0"

5'-3"17'-9"

BAY WINDOW SEAT

8'
-0

"
9'

-0
"

9'
-0

"
10

'-0
"

9'
-0

"

10
'-0

"

ba
y 

w
in

do
w

ba
y 

w
in

do
w

pr
op

er
ty

 li
ne

pr
op

er
ty

 li
ne

PROPOSED  ELEVATIONS
9' SECOND FLOOR 10' AT ARCHED SLD WINDOW UPPER FLOOR

8-6-18 RLE

SKYLIGHT
SKYLIGHT

4'-0"

le
ft 

si
de

 p
ro

pe
rty

 li
ne

skylight

12
7

STUCCO
STUCCO

STUCCO

STUCCO

STUCCO

WOOD W/ GUTTER WOOD W/ GUTTER

WOOD W/ GUTTER

RED TILE ROOF

RED TILE ROOF

RED TILE ROOF

RED TILE ROOF

WOOD W/ GUTTER

ROUND COPPER GUTERS
AND DOWNSPOUTS TYP

STUCCO

STUCCO

S
TU

C
C

OSTUCCO

STUCCO

STUCCO

STUCCO
STUCCO

STUCCO

STUCCO

STUCCO

STUCCO BELLEY BAND

WOOD W/ GUTTERSTUCCO BELLEY BAND

WOOD W/ GUTTER

5/8 " curb at driveway 6" high curb
16'-0"

7.5% slope

drivewaway profile at front

3'-4 1/4"

42" high concrete block wall
benind property line shown dashwd

42" high concrete block wall
benind property line shown dashwd

po
st6' fence

23
'-0

"

22
'-4

"

23
'-0

"

SPECIAL NOTE
LOT SLOPES DOWN
TO THE BACK

A
T 

TH
E

 B
A

C
K

A
T 

TN
E

 F
R

O
N

T

10'-0"

24
'-0

 5
/8

"

SPECIAL NOTE: SKYLIGHT CAN BE 1' ABOVE 
25' HEIGHT LIMIT

24
'-0

"

SPECIAL NOTE: SKYLIGHT CAN BE 1' ABOVE 
25' HEIGHT LIMIT

24
'-0

"

SPECIAL NOTE: SKYLIGHT CAN BE 1' ABOVE 
24' HEIGHT LIMIT

STUCCO

STUCCO

2'-0"

FLU

2'-0"

FLU 2'
-6

"

2'
-6

"

2'-0"

SKYLIGHT

6'-0"

7'-9" 13'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION
1/4" = 1' 0"

5'-0"

P
O

S
T

11'-6"2'-3"6'-6"

5'-0" 13'-9" 7'-3" 3'-0" 1'-6"

5'-0"

2 % slope foam roof cover

6'-6"

first floor seback

2'-6"

1'-0"
st

ai
r e

xt
er

io
r w

al
l a

t f
ro

nt

4'
-0

"

4.A.1

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

51
5 

P
ro

sp
ec

t 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

15
15

 P
ro

sp
ec

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



SHEET:

SHEETS

41
3 

C
ap

ito
la

 A
ve

nu
e 

   
   

 C
ap

ito
la

, C
A

 9
50

10
Ph

on
e:

 8
31

-4
79

-1
45

2 
   

   
Fa

x:
 8

31
-4

79
-1

47
6

   
R

IC
H

A
R

D
 L

. E
M

IG
H

   
  

   
  A

.I.
B

.D
.

D
R

A
FT

IN
G

, D
ES

IG
N

IN
G

 &
 L

A
N

D
 U

SE
 A

N
A

LY
SI

S 
P

et
er

 S
ha

m
sh

oi
an

15
15

 P
ro

sp
ec

t, 
C

ap
ito

la
C

A 
95

01
0

by
 R

LE
 

2-
28

-2
02

0 
+ 

10
 s

f
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

18
22

 s
f

A
P

N
 0

03
-2

02
-0

8 

PHONE
408-914-0404
209 Loma Alta Ave.
Los Gatos, CA 95030

L-1

P
R

E
LI

M
A

N
R

Y
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

&
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 P
LA

N

P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T 

A
V

E

80'

80

15'-0"

FA
C

E
 O

F 
C

U
R

B

4'
-0

"

CAR1CAR 2
GAR
10 X 20 MIN

18'-0"20'-0"

OPEN 
9 X 18

30'-0"

24
'-0

"

40
'-0

"

3'-0"

40' existing concrete 'removed

existing concrete removed

existing fence not on property line

ex
is

tin
g 

fe
nc

e 
no

t o
n 

pr
op

er
ty

 li
ne

existing fence not on property line

proposed seback

re
qu

ire
d 

se
tb

ac
k

additional
first floor 
area

7'
-1

0"

remove 5" dia plumb tree

6" dia lemon tree
to stay

dbl 4" dia flowering 
camellias tree
to stay

ELEV
84

ELEV 83

ELEV 83

FIRST FLOOR LINE
SECOND FLOOR LINE

CP
HOUSE
LINE

H
O

U
S

E
TW

O
 S

TO
R

Y

CP
FIRST FLOOR LINE
SECOND FLOOR LINE

HOUSE FOOTPRINT

21'-5 3/8"

TWO STORY
HOUSE

4 x 6
concrete 42 high block wall

conc

conc

PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN
BACK YARD CONCRETE PARIO REMOVED AND PERVIOUS PAGERS INSTALLED (500 SF)
PART OF CONDRETE DRIVEWAY REMOVED IIN FRONT AND PERVIOUS PAVERS INSTALLED
(320 SF IN FRONT YARD AND 100 IN ROW)

EXISTING REAR YARD LANDSCAPING TO STAY
2' WIDE LOW PLANTINGS ON NORTH SIDE OF DROVEWAY AND FRONT OF PATIO WALL
USING CALIFORNIA NATIVES AND DROUGHT TOLERANT PLANTS

GROUND TO SLOPE AWAY FROM BUILDING AND DOWNSPOUTS TO SPLASH GUARDS
INTO LANDSCAPE AREAS ,  REDUCTION OF IMPERVIOOUS SURFACE ON SITE
SO NO DOWNSTREAM NEGATIVE IMPACTS DS LOCATIONS SHOWN AS

THE CONSTRUCTION WILL TAKE PLACE IN THE DRY SEASON WITH ALL DISTRUBED AREAS
REPLANTED OR COVERED WITH MULCH AS SOON AS POSSIBLE.

THE EIGHT PAGE CONSTRUCTION WORK BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTES DATED JULY 2013 SHALL BE 
FOLLOWED AND ATTACHED TO THE BUILDING PERMIT DOCUMENT SETS

SWALE SLOPE TO BACK

SWALE SLOPE TO BACK

LANDSCAPING TO STAY

LANDXCAPING TO STAY

LA
N

D
X

C
A

P
IN

G
 T

O
 S

TA
Y

D
S D
S

D
S

DS

SLOPE OF DRIVEWAY

DS

D
S

42
 " 

H
IG

H
 B

LO
C

K
 F

E
N

C
E

 / 
W

A
LL

bench

4'
-0

"

11'-0"

4'-6"

1'5% slope

7.
5%

 s
lo

pe
7.

5%
 s

lo
pe

3'
-4

 1
/4

"
3'

-4
 1

/4
"

CONC

CONC

CONC

16
'-0

"

5'
-4

"
10

'-0
"

7'-6"

DS

IC
E

 P
LA

N
T 

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

LA
W

N

LA
W

N

TU
R

F 
B

LO
C

K

TU
R

F 
B

LO
C

K

PAVERS

PAVERS
200 SF

PAVERS

PAVERS

eeeeexexexxxisxisxissstststiiinininnngngng cccccococooonononnncncncccccrerrreetetettteteteeeee rerereememememmmmmmmooooovovovveeeedddeeexexxisxisssttiiininngng ccccocooononncncccrereretetttettee '''re'reememmmmmooovovveedd

PPPPAAAAAVAVAVVVEVEVEVEERERERRRRRRSSSSSSSPPPPAAAAAVAVAVVVEVEVEEERERERRRRRSSSSSS

rerererrererereeeeeeee
qqqqqqqqqqqqquuuuqquuuuquuuuuuuu

iririrrirrirrrrreeeereeeee
dedededededededdddddddd

sssssssssssssseeeeeeeeee
tttteettttt
btbtbbtbbtbbb
ababaababababaaaaa

cccaaaacccccccccccc
kckckkckkckkkkkk

PAVERS
240 SF

PAVERS
115 SF

PAVERS
120 SF

A DEDTAILED LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR THE FRONT YARD AREA
WILL BE REQUIRED AND INCLUDED IN THE BUILDING 
PERMIT DOCUMANTS.

SEE ATTACHED 8 1/ X 11 DETAILS OF TURF BLOCK AND PAVER INSTALLATION

4.A.1

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

51
5 

P
ro

sp
ec

t 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

15
15

 P
ro

sp
ec

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.A.1

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

51
5 

P
ro

sp
ec

t 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
F

u
ll 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

15
15

 P
ro

sp
ec

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.A.2

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

51
5 

P
ro

sp
ec

t 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 C

o
st

 B
re

ak
d

o
w

n
  (

15
15

 P
ro

sp
ec

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



 

 

 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T  

 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
DATE: APRIL 2, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: 1601 41st Avenue  #20-0105  APN: 034-151-20 
 

Sign Permit for new wall signs for Outdoor Supply Hardware located 
within the C-C (Community Commercial) zoning district.  
This project is not in the Coastal Zone. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Ow Family Trust DBA King’s Plaza SC 
Representative: Nathan Moreno – Ad Art Inc., Filed: 03.10.20 

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing two wall signs for Outdoor Hardware Supply located at 1601 41st 
Avenue in the C-C (Community Commercial) zoning district.  The proposed sign requires 
Planning Commission approval under the existing Master Sign Program. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On March 2, 2017, the Planning Commission approved permit #16-201 for a Master Sign 
Program for King’s Plaza shopping center (Attachment 1). 
 
The site was previously occupied by Orchard Supply Hardware and is now occupied by Outdoor 
Hardware Supply.  
 
DISCUSSION 
Outdoor Hardware Supply is located in the King’s Plaza shopping center, near the corner of 
Capitola Road and 38th Avenue.  The site is located within Capitola’s 41st Avenue commercial 
corridor.  
 
King’s Plaza shopping center has a master sign program.  All signs proposed for a property 
subject to an approved master sign program shall comply with the standard of the master sign 
program.  The master sign program for King’s Plaza requires Planning Commission approval for 
all signs over 70 square feet.  There are two signs proposed for Outdoor Supply Hardware, one 
over the main entrance (Sign A) and one over the nursery entrance (Sign B).  Sign A is 85 
square feet, and therefore requires Planning Commission approval. 
 
The following table includes the standards for Sign A and Sign B within the master sign 
program:  
 

King’s Plaza - Master Sign Program 
 

4.B

Packet Pg. 20



 
 

 

Suite Store 
Frontage 

Max Sign 
Area 

Max Sign Height Max Letter 
Height 

Max Logo 
Height 

Sign A 150’-0” 100 sq. ft. 5’-6” 5’-2” 5’-2” 

Sign B 150’-0” 70 sq. ft. 5’-6” 5’-2” 5’-2” 

Proposed Signs 
 

Suite Store 
Frontage 

Proposed 
Sign Area 

Proposed Sign Height Proposed 
Letter Height 

Proposed 
Logo Height 

Sign A 150’-0” 85 sq. ft. Range 3’-3½” to 7’-6” 
Average 5’-4½” 

3’-5 ½”  N/A 

Sign B 150’-0” 45.5 sq. ft. 5’-6” 1’-10 ¼” N/A 

 
Wall Sign A – OSH Sign 
Sign A complies with the master sign program as shown in the table above.  The maximum sign 
area for the east frontage is 100 square feet.  The proposed sign area is 85 square feet.  The 
sign utilizes a painted aluminum background with acrylic lettering.  The sign will be internally 
illuminated. 
 
The sign is similar in size and theme to the original Orchard Supply Hardware sign, except that 
it has a hexagonal shape. The maximum sign height is five-feet, six-inches.  Due to the unique 
shape of the sign, staff measured the height as average height, which is five feet two inches and 
in compliance with master sign program.  If the Planning Commission does not agree with this 
methodology, the sign could be conditioned not to exceed five feet six inches.   
 
Wall Sign B - Nursery Sign 
The nursery sign shares the same style and shape as the primary wall sign.  The sign utilizes a 
painted aluminum background with acrylic lettering. The sign will be internally illuminated.  The 
maximum sign area for the south frontage is 70 square feet. The south-facing nursery sign has 
a sign area of 45.5 square feet.  The maximum sign height is five-feet, six-inches.  The 
proposed sign is five-feet, six-inches tall, which complies. 
 
Tenant Signs 
The application also includes a request for three double-sided tenant signs on three existing 
multi-tenant monument signs.  The signs comply with the Master Sign Program and would 
otherwise be administratively approved.  
 

1. Monument signs may have a maximum of six tenants on them.   
Staff Analysis:  No proposed sign would exceed the maximum number of tenants. 
 

2. No tenant shall be on more than one monument sign on 41st Avenue. 
Staff Analysis:  Only one sign is proposed on 41st Avenue. 
 

3. No tenant shall be on more than one monument sign on Capitola Road. 
Staff Analysis:  Only one sign is proposed on Capitola Road. 

 
4. No tenant shall be on more than one monument sign on 38th Avenue. 

Staff Analysis:  Only one sign is proposed on 38th Avenue. 
 

5. Monument signs shall use illumination within the lettering and logo only.  The 
background must be solid and may not be illuminated. 
Staff Analysis:  All proposed tenant monument signs will have solid backgrounds with 
illuminated lettering only. 

 

4.B

Packet Pg. 21



 
 

 

CEQA 
This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California Environmental Quality 
Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations. The 
proposed project involves two wall signs on a commercial property in the C-C (Community 
Commercial) zoning district. No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project 
review by either the Planning Department Staff or the Planning Commission.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve project application #20-0105 based on the 
following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

1. The project approval consists of two wall signs for Outdoor Hardware Supply at 1601 
41st Avenue in the C-C (Community Commercial) zoning district. The proposed project is 
approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Commission on April 2, 2020, except as modified through conditions imposed by the 
Planning Commission during the hearing. 
 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans. 
 

3. Any sign illumination must be screened from direct view, so that the illumination does not 
shine into adjacent property or distract motorists or pedestrians. 
 

4. Wall signs shall use illumination within the lettering and logo only.  The background must 
be solid and may not be illuminated.  
 

5. All illumination must comply with the standards of the sign ordinance and municipal 
code.  Animated signs and moving lights are prohibited.  No sign shall have an intensity 
of more than fifty foot-candles as measured from the ground level. 
 

6. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 
requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.   
 

7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #20-0105 
shall be paid in full. 
 

8. All signs on the property must comply with sign standards of the Capitola Zoning code. 
Prior to installation of the wall sign the non-compliant window signs on the site must be 
removed.  Illegal signs that are not remedied in a timely manner may result in a citation 
and may remove or cause removal of the illegal signs.  
 

9. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work. No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way. 
 

10. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  

4.B

Packet Pg. 22



 
 

 

Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends except for 
Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work approved by the 
building official. §9.12.010B  
 

11. Compliance with all conditions of approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of 
the Community Development Director.  Upon evidence of non-compliance with 
conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions, the applicant shall 
remedy the non-compliance to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director 
or shall file an application for a permit amendment for Planning Commission 
consideration. Failure to remedy a non-compliance in a timely manner may result in 
permit revocation. 
 

12. This permit shall expire 2 years from the date of issuance. The applicant shall have an 
approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent permit 
expiration. Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.156.080. 
 

13. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted. 

 
FINDINGS 

A. The proposed signs are consistent with the general plan, local coastal program, 
zoning code, and any applicable specific plan or area plan adopted by the city 
council. 
Community Development Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the sign 
application. The proposed wall signs complies with all applicable provisions of the zoning 
code, municipal code, and the King’s Plaza Master Sign Program. 
 

B. The proposed signs comply with all applicable standards in Chapter 17.80 (Signs). 
Community Development Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the sign 
application. The proposed wall signs comply with all applicable standards of Chapter 
17.80. 
 

C. The proposed sign will not adversely impact the public health, safety, or general 
welfare. 
Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have 
reviewed the sign application and determined that the proposed sign will not have 
adverse impact on public health, safety, or general welfare. 

 
D. The number, size, placement, design, and material of the proposed signs are 

compatible with the architectural design of buildings on the site. 
Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have 
reviewed the sign application and determined that the proposal is compatible with the 
architectural design of the buildings on the site. 
 

E. The proposed signs are restrained in character and no larger than necessary for 
adequate identification. 
Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have 
reviewed the sign application and determined that the proposal is compatible with the 

4.B

Packet Pg. 23



 
 

 

architectural design of the buildings on the site. 
 

F. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California    
Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts minor alterations of existing public or 
private structures. This project involves two wall signs within the C-C (Community 
Commercial) zoning district. No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during 
review of the proposed project.  

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. King's Plaza - Master Sign Program 
2. 1601 41st Avenue - Plan Set 

 
Prepared By: Sean Sesanto 

4.B

Packet Pg. 24



4.B.1

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

in
g

's
 P

la
za

 -
 M

as
te

r 
S

ig
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.1

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

in
g

's
 P

la
za

 -
 M

as
te

r 
S

ig
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.1

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

in
g

's
 P

la
za

 -
 M

as
te

r 
S

ig
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.1

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

in
g

's
 P

la
za

 -
 M

as
te

r 
S

ig
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.1

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

in
g

's
 P

la
za

 -
 M

as
te

r 
S

ig
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.1

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

in
g

's
 P

la
za

 -
 M

as
te

r 
S

ig
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.1

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

in
g

's
 P

la
za

 -
 M

as
te

r 
S

ig
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.1

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

in
g

's
 P

la
za

 -
 M

as
te

r 
S

ig
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.1

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

in
g

's
 P

la
za

 -
 M

as
te

r 
S

ig
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.2

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

60
1 

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.2

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

60
1 

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.2

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

60
1 

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.2

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

60
1 

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.2

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

60
1 

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.2

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

60
1 

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.2

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

60
1 

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.2

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

60
1 

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.2

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

60
1 

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.2

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

60
1 

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.B.2

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

60
1 

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

P
la

n
 S

et
  (

16
01

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)



 

 

 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T  

 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
DATE: APRIL 2, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: 1850 41st Avenue  #20-0114  APN: 034-201-44 
 

Conditional Use Permit Amendment for a retail cannabis business 
located within the C-C (Community Commercial) zoning district.  
This project is not in the Coastal Zone. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: C. Richard Deane and Marilyn Ardis Deane 
Revocable Family Trust 
Representative: Lara DeCaro, Filed: 03.13.2020 

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant is requesting an amendment to a Conditional Use Permit (#19-0408) which 
permitted a 3,945-square-foot retail cannabis establishment at 1850 41st Avenue located within 
the C-R (Regional Commercial) zoning district.  The original project included a design permit, 
sign permit, and conditional use permit (CUP) for the change of use, modifications to the 
exterior of the structure, and a new sign.   
 
BACKGROUND 
On May 28, 2019, the City selected Apothecarium as a potential retail cannabis license holder 
for one of two licenses within the City of Capitola.  Due to an appeal of the City’s decision in the 
selection process, the first date on which Apothecarium could obtain a potential license was 
August 2, 2019.  
 
On October 3, 2019, the Planning Commission approved a Conditional Use Permit for a retail 
cannabis establishment at 1850 41st Avenue.  Condition of Approval #16 required the applicant 
to obtain the appropriate state license(s) for retail sales of cannabis within six months of 
selection as a potential retail cannabis license holder.  The permit was set to expire on February 
2, 2020 if the permits were not obtained.   
 
On November 25, 2019, the applicant submitted an application for a Provisional License to the 
California Bureau of Cannabis Control (BCC).  
 
On December 17, 2019, the applicant received a confirmation of receipt from the BCC.   
 
On January 30, 2020, the applicant was informed by the BCC that their application could not be 
approved until the construction taking place under Capitola Building Permit #20200034 is 
completed. As a result, the applicant missed the February 2, 2020, deadline in Condition #16. 

4.C

Packet Pg. 45



 
 

 

 
On March 13, 2020, the applicant received final approval for a provisional license from the BCC 
to avoid conflict with local requirements.  Also on this date, the city received an application to 
amend CUP #19-0408. 
 
DISCUSSION 
In order to comply with the BCC, which requires any premises related to a Provisional License 
application to be “built-out and ready to operate” prior to approval, the applicant is requesting a 
modification to Condition of Approval #16 of Conditional Use Permit #19-0408, to read as 
follows: 
 

16. This permit shall expire on February 2, 2020 May 2, 2020, if the applicant has not 
obtained the appropriate state license(s) for retail sales of cannabis within six months of 
selection as a potential retail cannabis license holder.   The applicant shall have an 
approved building permit and construction underway within 24 months of the Conditional 
Use approval date to prevent permit expiration.  

 
Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 5.36 established the regulations to issue a cannabis license.  
Section 5.36.030(B)(7) lists the contingencies to permit issuance as follows:  
 

7. Issuance of License. The issuance of a final cannabis retail license shall be contingent upon 
the following: 

a. Applicant must have been identified as a potential retail cannabis license holder 
pursuant to subsection (A)(6) of this section; 

b. Approval of a conditional use permit by planning commission within six months of 
selection as a potential retail cannabis license holder; and 

c. Appropriate state license(s) for retail sales of cannabis within six months of selection 
as a potential retail cannabis license holder. 

d. Effective Date. The cannabis retail license shall be issued upon receipt of a 
conditional use license and state license(s). 

e. Expiration. If the business owner/operator is unable to obtain either of the 
requirements outlined in subsection (A)(7)(a) and (b) of this section within six 
months from the selection date, the selection will expire immediately and a retail 
cannabis license will be made available and publicly noticed. The six months shall 
commence six months from the date of official selection on the same day of the 
month. 

It is important to note that §5.36.030(B)(7)(e) states that, if business owner/operator is unable to 
obtain either of the requirements outlined in subsection (A)(7)(a) and (b) of this section within six 
months from the selection date, the selection will expire immediately and a retail cannabis 
license will be made available and publicly noticed. The six months shall commence six months 
from the date of official selection on the same day of the month. The requirement for a state 
license is within subsection (A)(7)(c); therefore, modifying the condition to approve the 
extension would not violate the ordinance. 
 
CEQA 

4.C

Packet Pg. 46



 
 

 

This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California Environmental Quality 
Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations. The 
proposed project involves a retail use occupying an existing commercial space previously 
occupied by a professional office.  The project includes no additional floor area and the use has 
the same parking requirement (1 parking space per 300 square feet of floor area) as the 
previous tenant.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project review by 
Planning Staff or the Planning Commission. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve application #20-0114, subject to the 
following conditions, with amended Condition #16, and based upon the following findings: 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1. The project approval consists of a conditional use permit for a new retail cannabis 

business (The Apothecarium), design permit for modifications to the exterior of the 
existing building, and a sign permit for a new wall sign.  The proposed project is 
approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Commission on October 3, 2019, except as modified through conditions imposed by the 
Planning Commission during the hearings on October 3, 2019, and April 2, 2020.   
 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission. All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans. 
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM 
shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans. All 
construction shall be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP 
STRM.  

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 

requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department. Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.  
 

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a landscape plan shall be submitted and approved 
by the Community Development Department. The landscape plan can be produced by 
the property owner, landscape professional, or landscape architect.  Landscape plans 
shall reflect the Planning Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location 
of species and details of any proposed (but not required) irrigation systems.  

 
7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #19-0408 

shall be paid in full. 
 

8. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Santa Cruz 
Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.  
 

4.C

Packet Pg. 47



 
 

 

9. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works. The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

11. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 
official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

12. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work. No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way. 
 

13. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City. 
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 
 

14. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department. All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards. 

 
15. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 

approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director and Chief of Police. Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of 
approval of the Conditional Use permit and/or the retail cannabis license, or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director and Chief of Police. Failure to 
remedy a non-compliance in a timely manner may result in conditional use permit 
revocation and retail cannabis license revocation. 
 

16. This permit shall expire on February 2, 2020 May 2, 2020, if the applicant has not 
obtained the appropriate state license(s) for retail sales of cannabis within six months of 
selection as a potential retail cannabis license holder.   The applicant shall have an 
approved building permit and construction underway within 24 months of the Conditional 
Use approval date to prevent permit expiration.  
 

16. The Cannabis License is subject to the Capitola Municipal Code Section 5.36.030(A)(9) 
License Transfer to New Owner.   
 

17. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days.  

 
FINDINGS 

4.C

Packet Pg. 48



 
 

 

A. The proposed project is consistent with the general plan, local coastal program, 
and any applicable specific plan, area plan, or other design policies and 
regulations adopted by the city council. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project. The proposed conditional use 
permit for a new retail cannabis business, design permit for structural modifications, and 
sign permit for a new wall sign comply with the development standards of the C-R 
zoning district.  The project secures the purpose of the General Plan and design policies 
and regulations adopted by the City Council. 
 

B. The proposed project complies with all applicable provisions of the zoning code 
and municipal code. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the application for a conditional use permit for a 
new retail cannabis business, design permit for structural modifications, and sign permit 
for a new wall sign. The project complies with all applicable provisions of the zoning 
code and municipal code. 
 

C. The proposed project has been reviewed in compliance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California Environmental 
Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of 
Regulations. The proposed project involves a retail use occupying an existing 
commercial space previously occupied by a professional office.  The project includes no 
additional floor area and the use has the same parking requirement (1 parking space per 
300 square feet of floor area) as the previous tenant.  No adverse environmental impacts 
were discovered during project review by Planning Staff or the Planning Commission. 
 

D. The proposed development will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or 
welfare or materially injurious to the properties or improvements in the vicinity. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project. The proposed conditional use 
permit for a new retail cannabis business, design permit for structural modifications, and 
sign permit for a new wall sign will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or 
welfare or materially injurious to the properties or improvements in the vicinity.  
 

E. The proposed project complies with all applicable design review criteria in Section 
17.120.070 (Design review criteria). 
The Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 
the Planning Commission have all reviewed the application. The proposed design permit 
for structural modifications complies with all applicable design review criteria in Section 
17.120.070. 
 

F. The proposed signs are consistent with the general plan, local coastal program, 
zoning code, and any applicable specific plan or area plan adopted by the city 
council. 
Community Development Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the sign 
permit application. The proposed wall sign is consistent with the general plan and zoning 
code. 
 

G. The proposed signs comply with all applicable standards in Chapter 17.80 (Signs). 

4.C

Packet Pg. 49



 
 

 

Community Development Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the sign 
permit application. The proposed wall sign complies with all applicable standards in 
Chapter 17.80 (Signs). 
 

H. The proposed sign will not adversely impact the public health, safety, or general 
welfare. 
Community Development Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the sign 
permit application. The proposed wall sign will not adversely impact the public health, 
safety, or general welfare. 
 

I. The number, size, placement, design, and material of the proposed signs are 
compatible with the architectural design of buildings on the site. 
Community Development Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the sign 
permit application. The number, size, placement, design, and material of the proposed 
wall sign are compatible with the architectural design of the buildings on the site. 

 
J. The proposed signs are restrained in character and no larger than necessary for 

adequate identification. 
Community Development Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the sign 
permit application. The proposed wall sign is restrained in character and no larger than 
necessary for adequate identification. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 1850 41st Avenue - License Application - Capitola Caring Project LLC 
2. 1850 41st Avenue - Bureau of Cannabis Control - Apothecarium 

 
Prepared By: Matt Orbach 
  Associate Planner 

4.C

Packet Pg. 50



  

{APOTHSF/0016/LTR/01554613.DOCX} 

 

 

LARA L. DECARO 
LDeCaro@lpslaw.com 

 

 

 

 

March 13, 2020 

 

 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL ONLY 

 

 

Samantha W. Zutler  

City Attorney, City of Capitola 

101 Howard Street, Suite 400  

San Francisco, CA  94105-6125 

Email: szutler@bwslaw.com 

 

Matt Orbach 

Associate Planner, City of Capitola 

420 Capitola Avenue 

Capitola, CA 95010  

Email: morbach@ci.capitola.ca.us  

 

Re: License Application Capitola Caring Project, LLC 

 Capitola Application No. 19-0408 

 State Application No. C10-19-0000293-APP  

 

Dear Ms. Zutler and Mr. Orbach: 

Thank you for your patience in this matter. This letter is in response to your request for a 

letter seeking a formal extension of time to Condition 16 of the attached Final Local Action 

Notice and Zoning Permit for Application No. 19-0408, dated October 21, 2019 (the "CUP"). 

Specifically, it is our understanding that the Planning Commission and/or Community 

Development Department has requested we seek a 3-month extension to Condition 16 (defined 

below) to the CUP. 

As you are aware, the Zoning Commission placed a condition ("Condition 16") on the 

CUP requiring the applicant, Capitola Caring Partners, LLC ("CCP"), to receive "the appropriate 

state license(s) for retail sales of cannabis within six (6) months of selection as a potential 

cannabis retail holder" (as that phrase is used in Capitola Municipal Code, Chapter 5.36, Sections 

5.36.030.B.6 and B.7). Without such timely State license(s) the CUP was set to expire February 

2, 2020. 

 

4.C.1

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

85
0 

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

L
ic

en
se

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 -

 C
ap

it
o

la
 C

ar
in

g
 P

ro
je

ct
 L

L
C

  (
18

50
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

n
u

e)

mailto:szutler@bwslaw.com
mailto:morbach@ci.capitola.ca.us


 

 
Capitola Caring Partners Application No. 19-0408 

March 13, 2020 

Page 2 
 

 

{APOTHSF/0016/LTR/01554613.DOCX} 

 

However, Capitola Municipal Code Section 5.36.030(B)(7) states that "issuance of a final 

cannabis retail license shall be contingent upon…Applicant must have been identified as a 

potential retail cannabis license holder pursuant to subsection (A)(6) of this section; b. Approval 

of a conditional use permit by planning commission within six months of selection as a potential 

retail cannabis license holder; and c. Appropriate state license(s) for retail sales of cannabis 

within six months of selection as a potential retail cannabis license holder." Capitola Municipal 

Code Section 5.36.030(B)(7)(e) states that, if the Applicant "is unable to obtain either of the 

requirements outlined in subsection (A)(7)(a) and (b) of this section within six months from the 

selection date, the selection will expire immediately and a retail cannabis license will be made 

available and publicly noticed. The six months shall commence six months from the date of 

official selection on the same day of the month." 

Whether it was a drafting error or intentional, the Code does not call for automatic 

expiration of the CUP in the instance of a failure to obtain State licensure within six months. By 

its terms, the automatic expiration relates only to Subsections (a) and (b), but the state license 

requirement is in (c). Thus, failure to meet the 6 month deadline for state licensing does not 

result in an automatic expiration of the license. As a result, communications with the City lead 

all parties to presume the automatic trigger would not go into effect. (See attached email from 

Jamie Goldstein dated January 28, 2020.) 

Since receiving its CUP, CCP diligently pursued the State license. Unfortunately, during 

that process, the BCC determined that issuing a provisional license was inconsistent with the 

Bureau of Cannabis Control Regulations, California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Division 42 

("Regulations") governing commercial cannabis retail facilities. (Please see attached email from 

Lisbeth Cader, dated January 30, 2020.) Pursuant to the BCC's most recent interpretation of the 

Regulations, a licensee would have certain legal obligations to, inter alia, participate in track and 

trace with product and provide a final premises diagram. As such, the BCC has recently 

determined that provisional licensure for facilities cannot issue until an applicant is ready to take 

on inventory and open its doors for business. It is important to note that this interpretation was 

surprising in that it is inconsistent with BCC’s prior licensing activity; though, as with any new 

law and agency, they are continuing to develop and refine their processes. 

Nonetheless, following much discussion with the Bureau, they have agreed to issue an 

inactive provisional license to avoid conflict with local action. Therefore, we are pleased to state 

that we have today received final approval for our provisional license from the State! (Please see 

attached email from the BCC dated today, March 13, 2020.)  

Accordingly, and for all of the reasons stated above, CCP hereby respectfully requests 

that any delay be excused for good reason and for an extension of time not to exceed 90 days 

from February 2, 2020, giving CCP until Saturday, May 2, 2020 (or close of business on the next 

business day) to comply with Condition 16. 

4.C.1

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

85
0 

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

L
ic

en
se

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 -

 C
ap

it
o

la
 C

ar
in

g
 P

ro
je

ct
 L

L
C

  (
18

50
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

n
u

e)



 

 
Capitola Caring Partners Application No. 19-0408 

March 13, 2020 

Page 3 
 

 

{APOTHSF/0016/LTR/01554613.DOCX} 

 

Please feel free to reach out to me with any questions or comments you may have. Your 

consideration is greatly appreciated. 

 

 Very truly yours, 

 

 

 

Lara L. DeCaro 

LELAND, PARACHINI, STEINBERG, 

MATZGER & MELNICK, LLP 

 

LLD 

 

Encls.: Email from BCC approving provisional license, dated March 13, 2020 

 Email from Lisbeth Cader, BCC Staff Services Manager I, dated January 30, 2020 

 Email from Jamie Goldstein, Capitola City Manager, dated January 28, 2020 

 Timeline of Events 

 

cc: Katie Herlihy, Community Development Director, KHerlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us 

 Ryan Hudson, CEO, Ryan@apothecarium.com  

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.C.1

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

85
0 

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

L
ic

en
se

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 -

 C
ap

it
o

la
 C

ar
in

g
 P

ro
je

ct
 L

L
C

  (
18

50
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

n
u

e)

mailto:Ryan@apothecarium.com


 

From: Cader, Lisabeth@DCA <Lisabeth.Cader@dca.ca.gov> 
Date: Thu, Jan 30, 2020 at 2:30 PM 
Subject: RE: PART 2: Re: Application: C10-19-0000293-APP - Capitola Caring Project, LLC 
To: ynez@apothecarium.com <ynez@apothecarium.com>, shawkins@apothecarium.com 
<shawkins@apothecarium.com> 
 

Good afternoon, 

Before I can recommend your application for provisional approval, I need evidence that your premise is 
built-out and ready to operate.  Currently your premise diagram indicates that it is “proposed”.    Please 
reference: 

 § 5006. Premises Diagram. 

(a) An applicant shall submit to the Bureau, with the application, a complete and detailed 

diagram of the proposed premises. The diagram shall be used by the Bureau to determine 

whether the premises meets the requirements under this division and the Act. The Bureau shall 

deny an application if the premises does not qualify for licensure pursuant to Business and 

Professions Code section 26057. 

 Since the premises is not built then the diagrams submitted do not accurately reflect the premises and 
therefore cannot be used to meet the requirements for licensure. 

 Regarding CCR 16 § 5022, if you are non-operational (not legally able to operate) then your business is 
“closed”.  

 Thank you, 

  

 

Lisabeth Cader 

Staff Services Manager I 

916-465-9236 

www.bcc.ca.gov 

https://cannabis.ca.gov 

             

  

  

4.C.2

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

85
0 

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

B
u

re
au

 o
f 

C
an

n
ab

is
 C

o
n

tr
o

l -
 A

p
o

th
ec

ar
iu

m
  (

18
50

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)

mailto:Lisabeth.Cader@dca.ca.gov
mailto:ynez@apothecarium.com
mailto:ynez@apothecarium.com
mailto:shawkins@apothecarium.com
mailto:shawkins@apothecarium.com
http://www.bcc.ca.gov/
https://cannabis.ca.gov/
https://www.facebook.com/BCCinfo.dca/
https://twitter.com/BCCinfo_dca
https://www.instagram.com/bureauofcannabiscontrol/


 

From: Scott Hawkins <shawkins@apothecarium.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2020 1:46 PM 
To: Ynez Carrasco <ynez@apothecarium.com> 
Cc: Cader, Lisabeth@DCA <Lisabeth.Cader@dca.ca.gov> 
Subject: Re: PART 2: Re: Application: C10-19-0000293-APP - Capitola Caring Project, LLC 

  

[EXTERNAL]: shawkins@apothecarium.com 

CAUTION: THIS EMAIL ORIGINATED OUTSIDE THE DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS!  
DO NOT: click links or open attachments unless you know the content is safe.  
NEVER: provide credentials on websites via a clicked link in an Email. 

 

Hi Lisabeth, 

  

Can you send an email outlining the operational status requirement for issuing a provisional license and 
include a  no-pre demo or build-out mention? 

  

Thanks, Scott  

-- 
Scott A. Hawkins 
Outreach | Community Development 
mobile: 510.457.1771 
 

 

 

 

4.C.2

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

85
0 

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

B
u

re
au

 o
f 

C
an

n
ab

is
 C

o
n

tr
o

l -
 A

p
o

th
ec

ar
iu

m
  (

18
50

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e)

mailto:shawkins@apothecarium.com
mailto:ynez@apothecarium.com
mailto:Lisabeth.Cader@dca.ca.gov
mailto:shawkins@apothecarium.com

	Agenda Packet
	1. Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
	2. Oral Communications
	A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda
	B. Public Comments
	C. Commission Comments
	D. Staff Comments

	3. Consent Calendar
	A. 115 San Jose Avenue
	Printout: 115 San Jose Avenue


	4. Public Hearings
	A. 1515 Prospect Avenue
	Printout: 1515 Prospect Avenue
	1. 1515 Prospect Avenue - Full Plan Set
	2. 1515 Prospect Avenue - Construction Cost Breakdown

	B. 1601 41st Avenue
	Printout: 1601 41st Avenue
	1. King's Plaza - Master Sign Program
	2. 1601 41st Avenue - Plan Set

	C. 1850 41st Avenue
	Printout: 1850 41st Avenue
	1. 1850 41st Avenue - License Application - Capitola Caring Project LLC
	2. 1850 41st Avenue - Bureau of Cannabis Control - Apothecarium


	5. Director's Report
	6. Commission Communications
	7. Adjournment

	Appendix
	3.A · 115 San Jose Avenue
	4.A · 1515 Prospect Avenue
	4.A.1 · 1515 Prospect Avenue - Full Plan Set
	4.A.2 · 1515 Prospect Avenue - Construction Cost Breakdown

	4.B · 1601 41st Avenue
	4.B.1 · King's Plaza - Master Sign Program
	4.B.2 · 1601 41st Avenue - Plan Set

	4.C · 1850 41st Avenue
	4.C.1 · 1850 41st Avenue - License Application - Capitola Caring Project LLC
	4.C.2 · 1850 41st Avenue - Bureau of Cannabis Control - Apothecarium



